

# Shire of Lake Grace

# 22 June 2022 Ordinary Council Meeting

# LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

# **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

Item	Item Description / Title	No of Pages
No.		
10.1	Ordinary Council Meeting – 25 May 2022	35
	Minutes of Meeting	
13.1	Shire of Lake Grace Tourism Advisory Council Meeting – 19 May 2022	5
	Minutes of Meeting	
14.4.1	2022 Local Government Convention and WALGA Annual General	
	Meeting	
	<ul> <li>Brochures and Literatures (not yet available as of this writing)</li> </ul>	
14.4.2	Newdegate Centenary Celebrations 2022	2
	<ul> <li>Email from Stephanie Clarke-Lloyd</li> </ul>	
14.5.1	Accounts for Payment – May 2022	8
	<ul> <li>List of Accounts Payable</li> </ul>	
16.0	Information Bulletin – June 2022 - Information Bulletin Cover Page	1

Shire of Lake Grace

**Ordinary Council Meeting** 

# **MINUTES**

25 May 2022

Meeting Commencing at 3:30 pm



No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Lake Grace for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council or Committee meetings or during formal or informal conversations with staff. The Shire of Lake Grace disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council or Committee meetings or discussions. Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement does so at that person's and or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for license, any statement or limitation or approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Lake Grace during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Lake Grace. The Shire of Lake Grace warns that anyone who has an application lodged with the Shire of Lake Grace must obtain and only should rely on WRITTEN CONFIRMATION of the outcome of the application and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Lake Grace in respect of the application.



# **CONTENTS**

1.0	DECLARATION OF OPENING ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS	. 4
2.0	CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS	. 4
2.1	DISCLAIMER READING AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY	. 4
3.0	RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE (PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)	. 5
3.1	PRESENT	. 5
3.2	APOLOGIES	. 5
3.3	IN ATTENDANCE	. 5
3.4	OBSERVERS / VISITORS	. 5
3.5	LEAVE OF ABSENCE PREVIOUSLY GRANTED	. 5
4.0	RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE	. 5
5.0	PUBLIC QUESTION TIME	. 5
6.0	PETITIONS/DEPUTATIONS/PRESENTATIONS	. 5
7.0	NOTATIONS OF INTEREST	. 6
7.1	DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTEREST – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 SECTION 5.60A	
7.2	DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL PROXIMITY INTEREST – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 SECTION 5.60B	. 6
7.3	DECLARATIONS OF IMPARTIALITY INTEREST – ADMINISTRATION REGULATIONS 1996 SECTION 34C	. 6
8.0	APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE	. 6
9.0	ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PRESIDING MEMBER WITHOUT DISCUSSION.	. 6
10.0	CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES	. 6
10.1	ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING – 27 APRIL 2022	. 6
10.2	SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING	. 6
10.3	ANNUAL MEETING OF ELECTORS	. 6
11.0	MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN	. 7

12.0	URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE PRESIDING MEMBER OR BY DECISION OF COUNCIL
13.0	REPORTS OF COMMITTEES
13.1	LOCAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (LEMC) – 12 MAY 2022 7
13.2	LAKE GRACE LIBRARY RESOURCE AND COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (LGLRCRCMC) – 17 MAY 2022
14.0	REPORTS OF OFFICERS
14.1	INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES
14.1.1	COMMUNITY CONSULTATION – NEW ROAD NAME, BIDDY CAMM INDUSTRIAL LOTS
14.1.2	ADDITIONAL WORKS & FUNDING FOR NEWDEGATE TOWN HALL14
14.2	PLANNING
14.3	HEALTH AND BUILDING 17
14.4	ADMINISTRATION
14.4.1	SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE – 2022 EXTRAORDINARY ELECTIONS (19 AUGUST 2022)
14.5	FINANCE
14.5.1	ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT – APRIL 202223
14.5.2	FINANCIAL REPORTS – 30 APRIL 2022
14.6	COMMUNITY SERVICES29
14.6.1	SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN (DAIP) PROGRESS REPORT 2021/202229
15.0	QUESTIONS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN 31
16.0	INFORMATION BULLETIN – MAY 2022
17.0	CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS AS PER LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT S5.23 (2) 33
18.0	DATE OF NEXT MEETING – 22 JUNE 2022
19.0	CLOSURE
20.0	CERTIFICATION34

# **SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE**

Minutes for the Ordinary Council Meeting held at the Council Chambers, 1 Bishop Street, Lake Grace, WA on Wednesday 25 May 2022, the meeting commenced at 3:30pm.

#### 1.0 DECLARATION OF OPENING ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

Nil

#### 2.0 CONSTITUTIONAL MATTERS

Nil

#### 2.1 DISCLAIMER READING AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Lake Grace for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council and Committee meetings or during formal and informal conversations with staff. The Shire of Lake Grace disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council and Committee meetings or discussions. Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement does so at that person's and or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for license, any statement or limitation or approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Lake Grace during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Lake Grace. The Shire of Lake Grace warns that anyone who has an application lodged with the Shire of Lake Grace must obtain and only should rely on WRITTEN CONFIRMATION of the outcome of the application and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Lake Grace in respect of the application.

# **Acknowledgement of Country**

I begin today by acknowledging the Ballardong people, Traditional Custodians of the land on which we meet today, and pay my respects to their Elders past, present and emerging.

I extend that respect to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples here today.

# 3.0 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE (PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)

### 3.1 PRESENT

Cr LW Armstrong

Cr R Chappell Cr DS Clarke Cr BJ Hyde Cr AJ Kuchling Cr RA Lloyd

Cr JV McKenzie

Shire President

Deputy Shire President

# 3.2 APOLOGIES

Cr SG Hunt

Mrs T Hall Manager Corporate Services
Mr C Paget Deputy Chief Executive Officer

Mr M Castaldini Community & Emergency Services Manager

# 3.3 IN ATTENDANCE

Mr A George Chief Executive Officer

Mr C Elefsen Manager Infrastructure Services

Mrs R Rose Executive Assistant

#### 3.4 OBSERVERS / VISITORS

Nil

# 3.5 LEAVE OF ABSENCE PREVIOUSLY GRANTED

Nil

#### 4.0 RESPONSE TO PREVIOUS PUBLIC QUESTIONS TAKEN ON NOTICE

Nil

# 5.0 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

Nil

#### 6.0 PETITIONS/DEPUTATIONS/PRESENTATIONS

Nil

#### 7.0 NOTATIONS OF INTEREST

# 7.1 DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL INTEREST – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 SECTION 5.60A

Nil

7.2 DECLARATIONS OF FINANCIAL PROXIMITY INTEREST – LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995 SECTION 5.60B

Nil

7.3 DECLARATIONS OF IMPARTIALITY INTEREST – ADMINISTRATION REGULATIONS 1996 SECTION 34C

Cr Ross Chappell submitted a Disclosure of Interest Affecting Impartiality for Item14.6.1 – Shire of Lake Grace Disability Access Inclusion Plan (DAIP) Progress Report 2021/2022, his wife Mrs Cheryl Chappell is the author of the report and also a staff member of the Shire of Lake Grace.

## 8.0 APPLICATIONS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Nil

#### 9.0 ANNOUNCEMENTS BY THE PRESIDING MEMBER WITHOUT DISCUSSION

Nil

# **10.0 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES**

#### 10.1 ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING - 27 APRIL 2022

#### **RESOLUTION 13575**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Lloyd

That the Minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on 27 April 2022 be confirmed as a true and accurate record of the meeting.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY: 7/0

#### 10.2 SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

Nil

#### 10.3 ANNUAL MEETING OF ELECTORS

Nil

# 11.0 MOTIONS OF WHICH PREVIOUS NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

Nil

# 12.0 URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE PRESIDING MEMBER OR BY DECISION OF COUNCIL

Nil

#### 13.0 REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

# 13.1 LOCAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (LEMC) – 12 MAY 2022

#### **RESOLUTION 13576**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr McKenzie

That the Minutes of the Local Emergency Management Committee meeting held on 12 May 2022 be accepted as a record of the meeting.

CARRIED: 7/0

# 13.2 LAKE GRACE LIBRARY RESOURCE AND COMMUNITY RESOURCE CENTRE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (LGLRCRCMC) – 17 MAY 2022

### **RESOLUTION 13577**

Moved: Cr Lloyd Seconded: Cr Hyde

That the Minutes of the Lake Grace Library Resource and Community Resource Centre Management Committee meeting held on 17 May 2022 be accepted as a record of the meeting.

CARRIED: 7/0

#### 14.0 REPORTS OF OFFICERS

### 14.1 INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES

# 14.1.1 COMMUNITY CONSULTATION - NEW ROAD NAME, BIDDY CAMM INDUSTRIAL LOTS

Applicant:	Internal Report
File No.	0357
Attachments:	Attachment 1 - Proposed Agricultural Industrial Subdivision and
	Road Reserve
Author:	
	My
	Mr Jason Lip
	Technical Officer
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil
Date of Report:	12 May 2022
Senior Officer:	Mr Craig Elefsen
	Manager Infrastructure Services

## **Summary**

That Council authorise the administration to open up submissions for a new road name for 30 days for the road proposed to be constructed as part of the Lake Grace Agricultural Industrial Subdivision on the east edge of Lake Grace town.

# **Background**

The Shire is in the process of subdividing Lot 101 and Lot 12 Kulin-Lake Grace Road for the purposes of future industrial development. As part of the proposal, a new sealed road will be constructed within a 20m wide road reserve that links Stubbs Street and Biddy Camm Road. This road and subdivision is presented in Attachment 1.

As a requirement for Landgate to accept the new Deposited Plan, a name is to be put forth for the road to be constructed that has also been approved by the Landgate Geographical Names Committee (GNC).

The land of this proposed subdivision cannot be sold or leased unless the Shire of Lake Grace is in possession of the Certificates of Title, which can only be received after Landgate has accepted and adopted the Deposited Plan.

#### Comment

It is the responsibility of the local government to propose a name to the GNC for approval. Once a letter from the GNC approving of the selected road name is received, then we can proceed with the application for the subdivision and the resulting receipt of the Deposited Plan. However, the Local Government is free to approach how they select a name for the new road.

In this instance, the Shire will seek proposals for a new road name through community consultation. The new road name submitted by the community will need to follow some rules and guidelines set forth in the Policies and Standards for Geographical Naming in Western Australia document published by Landgate as follows:

- Road names cannot start with 'THE' (i.e. "The Example ROAD" is not acceptable);
- Road names must only consist of one word followed by the road type (i.e. "Sunshine Sheep ROAD" is not acceptable);
- Road names cannot contain a road type in its name (i.e. "Lakeview ROAD", "Everglade ROAD", "Looper ROAD" and "Briarway ROAD" are not acceptable because 'VIEW', "GLADE", "LOOP" and "WAY" are actual road types);
- Road names must end in a road type, which in this case the road type will be 'ROAD';
- Road names cannot have prefixes or suffixes (i.e. "Example South ROAD", "Lakes Example ROAD" are not acceptable);
  - The only exception that will be considered is if the road is related to a local feature of historical significance, such as "Mount Sheridan ROAD" or "Lake Biddy ROAD".
- Road names cannot have numerals, in either number form ("7<sup>th</sup> ROAD") or written form ("Seven ROAD");
- Road names must not sound or read similar to existing road names in the surrounding location ("Beech ROAD" would not be acceptable if there is a "Beach ROAD" nearby);
- Road names containing animals, animal breeds or the name of a specific animal are not allowed unless there is evidence they are significant to the area in question;
- Destination-to-destination road names are no longer acceptable for new road names (i.e. "Harvey-Quindanning ROAD" is no longer acceptable);
- Road names featuring the name of a person can only be proposed if
  - o they are locally significant and have a demonstrated record of achievement,
  - o posthumously,
  - o person in question was not the victim of an accident or tragedy,
  - o preferred last name of the person is used unless it is already similar to an existing road,
    - evidence the name is supported by a community that reaches beyond a single local government region,

- ownership of nearby land by people related to the commemorated person will NOT assist the consideration of road name adoption,
- person has NOT sponsored or contributed to the development of the local area,
- names that start with Mc, Mac, M' or O' must not have a space between Mc, Mac, M' or O' and the rest of the name,
- abide by all other restrictions noted above.

Each road name proposal to the Geographical Names Committee (GNC) needs to include:

- The reason for the proposal or name change,
- Origin of each road name and its source,
- A location by local government, locality and estate name if known,
- Identification on a map clearly indicating extent and precise start and end points,
- Photographs or sketches,
- Any other supporting information such as historic articles, reference materials, publications etc.
- Where applicable, evidence of landowner, family of community support,
- If the name is Aboriginal in origin, evidence of support from relevant Aboriginal Community.

"Community" in this instance means residents living within the Shire of Lake Grace, or landowners that have property located within the Shire of Lake Grace. Proposals from outside the community will be weighed less in consideration by the Shire.

Due to the above supplementary information required, any proposed names submitted by the community to the Shire will also need to supply a reason why they have proposed that road name, and in the case of proposing a name commemorating a deceased person, evidence of their significance. Road name proposals will also need to supply the address of the proposer (whether an individual or representative of a business or corporate entity).

The Shire intends to open the community consultation for a period 30 days, whereby community members can submit their proposal to the Shire by email or post. The notice will be published to the Shire website, the Shire's Facebook account and into the local newsletters. Afterwards, all responses will be collated and the Shire will present their recommendation for which road name shall be applied to the new road in the next Ordinary Council Meeting. The Shire's road name recommendation to Council will be based on adherence to the document Policies and Standards for Geographical Naming in Western Australia and local significance.

Council reserves the right to select their own road name from amongst the received list of proposed road names separate from the Shire's recommendation. Once Council has selected a road name, this name will be advertised to the once more to the community for a period of 14 days for complaints and objections. A list of these objections are to be addressed individually or commented on by the Shire and sent to the GNC along with the formal application for the new road name.

Note that while the Shire can propose a name to the GNC that has consensus approval with the community and Council, there is no guarantee that GNC will accept the name. If this comes to pass, the Shire will liaise with GNC to find the most acceptable name from amongst the list of received road names from the community, present that again to Council at the next Ordinary Council Meeting for the written record, and be submitted back to the GNC bypassing all community consultation.

In the event where the Shire deems none of the road name proposals from the community as suitable, the Shire will present its own road name to Council for approval.

As of 19 May 2022, we received some suggestions of road names as follows:

- GWENLOPE ROAD a combination of name/surname for Gwen and Jackson Calope, a local resident of Lake Grace.
- KWEL ROAD An Aboriginal name for a Sheoak tree used to make boomerang, the young nuts
  and roots are edible, people gather around and sit under the tree to hear the sound of the wind
  blowing through.

### **Legal Implications**

Nil

#### **Policy Implications**

Nil

# Consultation

Internal: Mr Alan George - Chief Executive Officer, Shire of Lake Grace

External: Mr Mark Anderson - 35 Degrees South

#### Financial Implications

Negligible and notifications regarding the community consultation can be done at a minimal cost.

# Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027

Economic Objective		A prosperous agricultural based economy, supporting diversification of industry		
Outcome	1.1	An innovative, productive agriculture industry		
Strategy	1.1.1	Enhance and maintain transport network		
Outcome	1.2	A diverse and prosperous economy		
Strategy	1.2.2	Support local business and promote further investment in the district		
Leadership Objective		Strong governance and leadership, demonstrating fair and equitable community values		
Outcome	4.1	A strategically focused, unified Council functioning efficiently		
Strategy	4.1.1	Provide informed leadership on behalf of the community		
	4.1.2	Promote and advocate for the community and district		
	4.1.3	Provide strategic leadership and governance		

# **Voting Requirements**

Simple majority required.

# **RESOLUTION 13578**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Hyde

That Council authorise the Shire to open up submissions for road name proposals for 28 days for the new road to be constructed between Lake Grace-Newdegate Road and Biddy Camm Road on existing land Lot 101 and 12 Kulin-Lake Grace Road.

CARRIED: 7/0

PH 9842 3766 FAX 98421019 EMAIL: marka@35degreesouth.com.au

ISO 9001

#### ATTACHMENT 1 - PROPOSED AGRICULTURAL INDUSTRIAL SUBDIVISION AND ROAD RESERVE ORIGINAL LOT AREAS LOT 12 - 29.92ha LEGEND LOT 101 - 20.24ha O/HEAD POWER LINE U/G WATER MAIN 9002 CURRENT BOUNDARY PROPOSED BOUNDARY APPLICATION AREA DAM 6.57ha RAILWAY PROPOSED 20m WIDE ROAD PROPOSED 101 LOTA WIDE 25.05ha 15.25ha ROAD PROPOSED 50m ROAD PROPOSED 20m WIDE ROAD WIDE BUFFER ZONE 289 13088 HEIGHT DATUM : AHD 35 DEGREES SOUTH HAS TAKEN DUE CARE IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS DRAWING, BUT ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR ANY INACCRUACY OF THE HIGH WATER MARK POSITION. Only above ground featurs have been located COORDINATE SYSTEM: MGA'94 Areas & dimensions are subject to final survey OR THE CADASTRAL INFORMATION, NOR INAPPROPRIATE USE OF THIS INFORMATION THE Sewer information is as supplied by the CADASTRAL AND HIGH WATER MARK LOCATION ARE OBTAINED FROM LANDGATE'S DIGITAL CADASTRAL DATABASE NO RESPONSIBILITY CAN BE ACCEPTED FOR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED Water Corporation of W.A. and has not been this drawing is the property of 35 Degrees Sout surveyed on site except where shown. it must not be reproduced or altered without the prior written consent of the owner. TO ANY UNDERGROUND SERVICE OR ANY LOSS OR INJURY SO SUFFERD IF ENQUIRY AND VERIFICATION HAVE NOT BEEN COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THIS NOTE. SOIL - not surveyed VEGETATION - cleared The information shown on this drawing is LOT 12 BIDDY-CAMM RD & LOT 101 STUBBS ST KERB - none current as at the date of survey. 35 DEGREES SOUTH LAND AND SEA SURVEYING LAKE GRACE - PROPOSED SUBDIVISION Earthworks/setout dimensions may vary on WIND - southerly site at builders discretion. Sewer/drainage may vary from schematic presentation. SEWER - no ARGYLE BUILDING FEATURE & CONTOUR SURVEY POWER - o/head check minimum clearance. Retaining not 46 STIRLING TERRACE included/in addition to contract remains. CLIENT: SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE SURVEY DATE: 26/11/2020 SCALE 1:4000 ALBANY WA 6330 ORIGINAL SHEET ownersresposibility. For easements check

C/T VOL FOL:

DP 57312 (LOT 12) DP 27172 (LOT 101)

PLAN :

MAP REF

Certificate of Title, this is a site survey only,

the location of boundary pegs or fences in relation to boundary is not guarenteed. 2688 / 200 (LOT 12) 2208 / 27 (LOT 101)

AUTHORITY: SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE

JOB No 5290

DRAWING No DWG5290S

SIZE A3

1 of 1

#### 14.1.2 ADDITIONAL WORKS & FUNDING FOR NEWDEGATE TOWN HALL

Applicant:	Internal Report
File No.	0076
Attachments:	Nil
Author:	
	My
	Mr Jason Lip
	Technical Officer
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil
Date of Report:	20 May 2022
Senior Officer:	Mr Craig Elefsen Manager Infrastructure Services

#### **Summary**

For Council to authorise additional works at the Newdegate Town Hall and for Council to authorise the withdrawal of \$70,000 from the Newdegate Town Hall Reserve to undertake works to the internal of the hall.

# Background

At the September 2021 Council meeting Resolution 13465 was made to allow for works to be done on the external of the Newdegate Town Hall. After the resolution was passed council administration staff commenced seeking quotes and works commenced in April 2022.

#### **RESOLUTION 13465**

**Moved** Cr Stoffberg **Seconded** Cr Hyde

#### That Council:

- authorise the reduction of the maximum number of persons attending the Newdegate Town Hall to a maximum of 150 people down from the original maximum of 300 persons;
- 2) authorise the following works on the Newdegate Town Hall
  - a) Install hand rails on all external stair cases,
  - b) Install a disabled access ramp to the front of the hall with a maximum gradient of 1:14:
  - c) Remove complete flooring in the Lesser Hall and replace with suitable subflooring and install vinyl plans on top
  - d) Replace all gutters and downpipes
  - e) Paint all external asbestos cladding, window frames, facia, timber doors

- f) Remove staircase to upper level to prevent access
- g) Complete all other works required to bring it up to a usable standard for the Newdegate centenary event
- 3) Authorise the CEO to transfer money out of reserve Newdegate Hall Reserve to Job NGPHCAP "Newdegate Public Hall" if required.

Before the voting, the following changes were made on the above and below became part of the substantive motion:

- (e) paint / seal all external asbestos cladding, window frames, fascia, timber doors
- (f) isolate staircase to upper level to prevent access and keep the door locked
- (g) capital works to be limited to \$100,000. Any expenditure required above this amount must be taken to Council for approval.

Number 3 above to be replaced by:

(3) Community consultation be undertaken for the future of the Newdegate Town Hall following the Newdegate Centenary celebrations.

CARRIED: 7/0

# Comment

The Shire has awarded the current approved works to Dunkeld Construction who commenced work late April 2022. To date, approximately 90% of the approved works have been completed with only minor external painting and works on the fascias and hand rails outstanding.

The works that have been completed to date are to a high quality which has now highlighted the state of the internal walls and ceiling that desperately need attention.

After a site visit with the Shire President and CEO, it was highlighted the need to complete the painting works to the internal of the hall.

The Manager Infrastructure Services (MIS) obtained a quote from the painters currently on site to complete the proposed extra works. Due to the demand and waiting times for tradesmen, MIS is recommending that the internal painting be completed whilst the painters are onsite.

To cover the extra cost of painting that has been quoted and any minor extras that arise whilst these works are carried out, the administration is asking for a transfer of \$70,000 from the Newdegate Town Hall Reserve and any remaining funds be transferred back into Reserve in the 2022/2023 budget.

There is no provision in the requested funds for works on the stage curtains, main floor and the old doctor's surgery.

# Legal Implications

Nil

#### **Policy Implications**

Nil

# Consultation

Internal Cr Len Armstrong – Shire President

Mr Alan George - Chief Executive Officer

# Financial Implications

Accounts will be impacted as follows:

	Opening Balance of NGPHCAP 'Newdegate Public Hall'	\$100,000.00
Less	Outstanding purchase orders	-\$97,750.00
More	Transfer in from A001319 'Newdegate Hall Reserve Bank MUN'	\$70,000.00
'	Remaining funds for NGPHCAP	\$72,250.00
		<b>*</b> * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
	Opening Balance of A001319 'Newdegate Hall Reserve Bank MUN'	-\$126,133.17
Less	Transfer out to NGPHCAP 'Newdegate Public Hall'	\$70,000.00
· · ·	Closing Balance of A001319	-\$56,133.17

# **Strategic Implications**

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027

Social Objective		A valued, healthy and inclusive community and life-style
Outcome	2.1	An engaged, supportive and inclusive community
Strategy	2.1.1	Community services and infrastructure meeting the needs of the district
Outcome	2.2	A healthy and safe community
Strategy	2.2.1	Maintain and enhance sport and recreation facilities
	2.2.2	Provide and advocate for medical and health services
	2.2.3	Support provision of emergency services and
		encourage community volunteers
Environment Objective		Protect and enhance our natural and built environment
Outcome	3.1	A well maintained attractive built environment servicing the needs of the community
Strategy	3.1.1	Maintain, rationalise, improve or renew buildings and community infrastructure

# **Voting Requirements**

Absolute majority required.

# **RESOLUTION 13579**

Moved: Cr Hyde Seconded: Cr McKenzie

That Council: -

- Authorise the transfer of \$70,000.00 from the Newdegate Town Hall Reserve to NGPHCAP;
- Authorise the additional works at Newdegate Town Hall
- Will use the current painting contractors due to their availability

### CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY: 7/0

#### 14.2 PLANNING

Nil

# 14.3 HEALTH AND BUILDING

Nil

# 14.4 ADMINISTRATION

#### 14.4.1 SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE - 2022 EXTRAORDINARY ELECTIONS (19 AUGUST 2022)

Applicant:	Internal Report
File No.	0229
Attachments:	<ul> <li>Letter / quote received from the Western Australian Electoral Commission (WAEC) (LGE028 / 175999)</li> <li>Election Timetable</li> </ul>
Author:	RRRose
	Mrs Racelis Rose
	Executive Assistant
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil
Date of Report:	02 May 2022
Senior Officer:	Mr Alan George Chief Executive Officer

# Summary / Background

At the Ordinary Council meeting on Wednesday 27 April 2022, the Chief Executive Officer received a resignation letter from Councillor Shane David Carruthers as Councillor, which leaves the Shire of Lake Grace with one (1) vacant position for Councillors. To replace Cr Carruthers, the Shire with the assistance from the WA Electoral Commission (WAEC) will conduct an extraordinary election within 80 days from Council Resolution.

The extraordinary election will take place on Friday 19 August 2022, an Election Timetable was received from the WAEC and forms part of this report.

#### **Legal Implications**

Nil

# **Policy Implications**

Nil

#### Consultation

External Western Australia Electoral Commission (WAEC)

(Reference LGE 028 / 175999 dated 29 April 2022)

# Financial Implications

As per the WA Electoral Commission's letter Reference LGE 028 / 175999 dated 29 April 2022 the cost for the extraordinary election if conducted as a postal ballot is \$10,000 including GST which was based on the following assumptions:

- 920 electors
- Response rate of approximately 50%
- One (1) Vacancy
- Count to be conducted at the offices of the Shire of Lake Grace
- Appointment of a local Returning Officer
- Regular Australia Post delivery service to apply

# Costs **not** included in the estimate are:

- Non-statutory advertising (ie any additional advertisements in community newspapers and promotional advertising)
- Any legal expenses other than those that are determined to be borne by the Western Australian Electoral Commission in a Court of Disputed Returns
- One local government staff member to work in the polling place on election day

Please note that the Shire of Lake Grace has an Election Expense account E041040 in the amount of \$20,000 which is included in the 2021-2022 Annual Budget.

#### Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027

Leadership Objective		Strong governance and leadership, demonstrating fair and equitable community values
Outcome	4.1	A strategically focused, unified Council functioning efficiently
Strategy	4.1.1	Provide informed leadership on behalf of the community
	4.1.3	Provide strategic leadership and governance
Outcome	4.2	An efficient and effective organisation
Strategy	4.2.2	Comply with statutory and legislative requirements

# **Voting Requirements**

Absolute majority required.

# **RESOLUTION 13580**

Moved: Cr Clarke Seconded: Cr Chappell

#### That Council:

- Declare in accordance with section 4.20(4) of the Local Government Act 1995, the Electoral Commissioner to be responsible for the conduct of the extraordinary election.
- Decide in accordance with section 4.61(2) of the Local Government Act 1995 that the method of conducting the election will be as a postal election.

CARRIED BY ABSOLUTE MAJORITY: 7/0

LGE 028

WESTERN AUSTRALIAN Electoral Commission

Mr Alan George Chief Executive Officer Shire of Lake Grace PO Box 50 LAKE GRACE WA 6353

Attention: Ms Racelis Rose

Dear Mr George

#### Extraordinary Election

Thank you for your email dated 28 April advising of a Councillor's resignation in the district and requesting a cost estimate for the Commission to conduct an extraordinary election to fill the vacancy.

The estimated cost for the Commission to conduct an extraordinary election if conducted as a postal ballot is \$10,000 inc GST, which has been based on the following assumptions:

- 900 electors
- response rate of approximately 50%
- 1 vacancy
- · count to be conducted at the offices of the Shire of Lake Grace
- appointment of a local Returning Officer
- regular Australia Post delivery service to apply.

An additional cost of using Australia Post Priority Service for the delivery of election packages is approx. \$270 including GST.

Costs not incorporated in this estimate include:

- non-statutory advertising (ie any additional advertisements in community newspapers and promotional advertising)
- any legal expenses other than those that are determined to be borne by the Western Australian Electoral Commission in a Court of Disputed Returns
- · one local government staff member to work in the polling place on election day

The Commission is required by the Local Government Act to conduct local government elections on a full cost recovery basis and you should note that this is an estimate only and may vary depending on a range of factors including the cost of materials or number of replies received. The basis for charges is all materials at cost and a margin on staff time only.



The current procedure required by the Act is that my written agreement has to be obtained before the vote by Council is taken. To facilitate the process, you can take this letter as my agreement to be responsible for the conduct of the local government extraordinary election for the Shire of Lake Grace in accordance with section 4.20(4) of the Local Government Act 1995. My agreement is subject to the proviso that the Shire of Lake Grace also wishes to have the election undertaken by the Western Australian Electoral Commission as a postal election.

In order to achieve this, your Council would need to pass the following two motions by absolute majority:

- Declare, in accordance with section 4.20(4) of the Local Government Act 1995, the Electoral Commissioner to be responsible for the conduct of the extraordinary election.
- Decide, in accordance with section 4.61(2) of the Local Government Act 1995 that the method of conducting the election will be as a postal election.

I have enclosed an election schedule for a suggested election date of Friday 19 August 2022.

I look forward to conducting this election for the Shire of Lake Grace in anticipation of an affirmative vote by Council.

If you have any further queries please contact Phil Richards, Manager Election Events, on 9214 0443.

Yours sincerely

Robert Kennedy

ELECTORAL COMMISSIONER

29 April 2022



# ELECTION TIMETABLE Lake Grace Local Government Extraordinary Election

10.84	Days to Polling Day	Local Government Act	References to Act/Regs	Day	Date
	BD	Last day for agreement of Electoral Commissioner to conduct postal election.	LGA 4.20 (2)(3)(4)	Tue	31/05/2022
	80	A decision made to conduct the election as a postal election cannot be rescinded after the 80th day.	LGA 4.61(5)	Tue	31/05/2022
	70	Electoral Commissioner to appoint a person to be the Returning Officer of the Local Government for the election.	LGA 4.20 (4)	Fri	10/06/2022
	70	Between the 70th/56th day the CEO is to give Statewide public notice of the time and date of close of enrolments.	LGA 4.38(2)	Fri	10/05/2022
302	to	Preferred date Wednesday 15 June 2022		to	to
	56			Fri	24/08/202
200	56	Last day for for the CEO to advise the Electoral Commissioner of the need to prepare a residents roll.	LGA 4,40(1)		24/05/2022
	55	Advertising may begin for nominations from 56 days and no later than 45 days before election day.	LGA 4.47(1)	Fri	24/06/2022
Roll Close	50	Preferred date Wednesday 29 June 2022 Close roll 5.00 pm	LGA 4.39(1)	Thu	30/06/2022
78/1	45	Last day for advertisement to be placed calling for nominations.	LGA 4.47(1)	Tue	5/07/2022
Nominations Open	44	Nominations Open First day for candidates to lodge completed nomination paper, in the prescribed form, with the Returning Officer, Nominations period is open for 8 days.	LGA 4.49(a)	Wed	6/07/2022
100	38	If a candidate's nomination is withdrawn not later than 4.00 pm on the 38th day before election day, the candidate's deposit is to be refunded.	Reg. 27(5)	Tue	12/07/202
Nominations Close	37	Close of Nominations 4.00 pm on the 37th day before election day.	LGA 4.49(a)	Wed	13/07/2022
	36	Last day for the CEO to prepare & certify an owners & occupiers roll for the election. Last day for the Electoral Commissioner to prepare & certify a residents roll.	LGA 4.41(1) LGA 4.40(2)	Thu	14/07/2022
	29	Ladgement of election packages with Australia Post. Week Commencing	Approx	Thu	21/07/2022
	22	The preparation of any consolidated roll under subregulation (1) be completed on or before 22nd day before election day.	Reg. 18(2)	Thu	28/07/2022
	19	Last day for the Returning Officer to give Statewide public notice of the election.  Preferred date Wednesday 20 July 2022	LGA 4.64(1)	Sun	31/07/2022
anged a	4	Commence processing returned election packages	Approx	Mon	15/08/2022
Election Day	0	Election Day Close of poll 6.00 pm	LGA 4.7	Frl	19/08/2022



Post Election Day	Post Declaration	References to Act/Regs		Date
5	Election result advertisement.	LGA 4.77	Wed	24/08/2022
14	Report to Minister. The report relating to an election under section 4.79 is to be provided to the Minister within 14 days after the declaration of the result of the election.	Reg.81	Fri	2/09/2022
28	An invalidity complaint is to be made to a Court of Disputed Returns, constituted by a magistrate, but can only be made within 28 days after notice is given of the result of the election.	LGA 4.81(1)	Fri	16/09/2022

#### 14.5 FINANCE

# 14.5.1 ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT - APRIL 2022

Applicant	Internal Report
File No	0277
Attachments	List of Accounts Payable
Author	Ms Tegan Hall Manager Corporate Services
Disclosure of Interest	Nil
Date of Report	16 May 2022
Senior Officer	And
	Mr Alan George
	Chief Executive Officer

## **Summary**

For Council to ratify expenditures incurred for the month of April 2022.

# **Background**

List of payments for the month of April 2022 through the Municipal account is attached.

# Comment

In accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1995, a list of creditors is to be completed for each month showing:

- (a) The payee's name
- (b) The amount of the payment
- (c) Sufficient information to identify the transaction
- (d) The date of payment

The attached list meets the requirements of the Financial Management Regulations.

#### Legal Implications

Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 – Reg 12 Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 – Reg 13

# Policy Implications

Policy 3.6 - Authorised Use of Credit Card/Fuel Cards

Policy 3.7 - Purchasing Policy

#### Consultation

Nil

#### Financial Implications

The list of creditors paid for the month of April 2022 from the Municipal and Trust Accounts total \$1,316,131.81.

## Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027

Leadership Objective Strong governance and leadership, demonstrating fair and equitable

community values

Outcome 4.2 An efficient and effective organisation

Strategy 4.2.1 Maintain accountability and financial responsibility through effective

planning

4.2.2 Comply with statutory and legislative requirements

#### **Voting Requirements**

Simple majority required.

#### **RESOLUTION 13581**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Kuchling

That Council ratify the list of payments totalling \$1,316,131.81 as presented for the month of April 2022 incorporating:

Payment Method	Cheque/EFT/DD Number	Amount
Trust Account	EFT23462	\$51.00
Electronic Funds Transfers	EFT23461 - EFT23587	\$1,224,562.59
Municipal Account Cheques	36990 – 36997	\$36,939.42
Direct Debits	DD9958.1 - DD9993.9	\$54,578.80
	TOTAL	\$1,316,131.81

CARRIED: 7/0

# Shire of Lake Grace

# CERTIFICATE OF EXPENDITURE April 2022



This Schedule of Accounts to be passed for payment, covering

Payment Method	Cheque/EFT/DD Number	Amount
Trust Account	EFT23462	\$51.00
Electronic Funds Transfers	EFT23461 - EFT23587	\$1,224,562.59
Municipal Account Cheques	36990 – 36997	\$36,939.42
Direct Debits	DD9958.1 – DD9993.9	\$54,578.80
	TOTAL	\$1,316,131.81

to the Municipal Account, totalling \$1,316,131.81 which were submitted to each member of the Council on 25 May 2022, have been checked and fully supported by vouchers and invoices which are submitted herewith and which have been duly certified as to the receipt of goods and the rendition of services and as to prices, computations, and costing's and the amounts shown are due for payment.

Alan George
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

#### 14.5.2 FINANCIAL REPORTS – 30 APRIL 2022

Applicant:	Internal Report
File No.	0275
Attachments:	Monthly Financial Reports
	Bank Reconciliations - April 2022
Author:	For
	Mrs Victoria Fasano
	Finance Officer – Reporting and Investments
Disclosure of Interest	Nil
Date of Report	20 May 2022
Senior Officer	Bug
	Mr Alan George
	Chief Executive Officer

### **Summary**

Consideration of the Monthly Financial Reports for the period ending 30 April 2022 and Bank Reconciliations for the month ending 30 April 2022.

### **Background**

The provisions of the Local Government Act 1995 and associated Regulations require a monthly financial report is presented at an Ordinary Council meeting within two (2) months of the period end date.

#### Comment

As at 30 April 2022, operating revenue over target by \$2,266,681 (31.62%) due to WA Financial Assistance Grant received are over budget by \$2,340,381. Interest earnings below target due to low interest rates. Fees and Charges are below budget.

Operating expenditure is under YTD budget by \$1,748,717 (18.83%) mainly due to Materials and contracts, employee and overhead costs down as well as utility charges. Depreciation and Insurance expenses on the other hand are slightly over the budget target.

The capital program is below the target by \$2,922,800 (58.84%). Capital grants and contributions are down due to some of Local Roads & Community Infrastructure Projects (LRCIP) and Drought & Communities Program (DCP) projects are not yet initiated/finalised, funds will be recognised later in financial year. Payments for property, plant and equipment are below target as well due to slow-down in capital projects. This leads to Capital grants income decrease being offset by the reduction in payments for property, plant and equipment.

Cash at bank is similar to the corresponding period last year, an investment agreement for 2 term deposits with Bankwest is in place (total of \$6,508,205).

Outstanding rates is tracking well and have recovered 98.7% to date.

General debtor is \$193,649 with no major outstanding debts to follow up.

The monthly financial reports include the accompanying Local Government special purpose financial statements for the Shire of Lake Grace, which comprises the Statement of Financial Activity (by Statutory Reporting Program), a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes for the period ending 30 April 2022. The financial statements have been compiled to meet compliance with the Local Government Act 1995 and associated regulations.

The Shire of Lake Grace is responsible for the information contained in the financial statements and is responsible for maintenance of an appropriate accounting system in accordance with relevant legislation.

#### Legal Implications

Section 6.4 of the Local Governments Act 1995 provides for the preparation of financial reports.

In accordance with Regulation 34(5) a report on variances greater than the materiality threshold (\$5,000 or 10% whichever is greater) must be compiled and adopted by Council. As this report is composed at a program level variance commentary considers the most significant items that comprise the variance.

# **Policy Implications**

Nil

# Consultation

Internal Mrs Tegan Hall – Manager Corporate Services

#### Financial Implications

Nil

#### Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017 - 2027

Leadership Objective Strong governance and leadership, demonstrating fair and

equitable community values

Outcome 4.2 An efficient and effective organisation

Strategy 4.2.1 Maintain accountability and financial responsibility through

effective planning

4.2.2 Comply with statutory and legislative requirements

# **Voting Requirement**

Simple majority required.

# **RESOLUTION 13582**

Moved: Cr Hyde Seconded: Cr Lloyd

That Council, in accordance with Regulation 34 of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996, receives the attached:

- 1. Statements of Financial activity for the period ended 30 April 2022 and
- 2. Municipal, Trust and Reserve Funds bank reconciliations for the period ended 30 April 2022.

CARRIED: 7/0

#### 14.6 COMMUNITY SERVICES

Cr Ross Chappell submitted a Disclosure of Interest Affecting Impartiality for Item14.6.1 – Shire of Lake Grace Disability Access Inclusion Plan (DAIP) Progress Report 2021/2022, his wife Mrs Cheryl Chappell is the author of the report and also a staff member of the Shire of Lake Grace.

# 14.6.1 SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE DISABILITY ACCESS AND INCLUSION PLAN (DAIP) PROGRESS REPORT 2021/2022

Applicant:	Shire of Lake Grace
File No.:	0217
Attachments:	Annual Disability Access Inclusion Plan (DAIP) Report 2021/2022
Author:	Mrs Cheryl Chappell Community Service Officer
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil
Date of Report:	03 May 2022
Senior Officer:	Mr Alan George Chief Executive Officer

#### Summary

Public authorities including Local Governments are required to provide an annual report on the progress of their Disability Access Inclusion Plan (DAIP) strategies and outcomes to the Minister of Disability Services which is tabled in Parliament each year. A list of the seven (7) required outcomes are attached with the progress to date noted.

#### Background

The State Government's obligation to develop policies and services required by people with disability goes in some way to ensure people with disability can contribute their own expertise and life experience to improve the approachability and person-centred nature of the programs and supports they require.

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) progress reports provides an annual overview reflecting the work of public authorities to support and empower people with disability across the State. They are a mandatory requirement of all public authorities under the Disability Services Act 1993.

#### Comment

The Shire of Lake Grace Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) is unique to the Shire, reflecting the size, scope and activities of this local government.

The Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) is a developmental process. The objective of the progress report is to provide a valuable resource to public authorities and the community about the achievements and impacts of public authorities across each DAIP outcome area.

The progress report shows the ongoing commitment of the Shire to identify localised solutions. While many strategies are ongoing each year, some strategies are being reported as being implemented or completed in 2021/2022.

The Shire's DAIP Progress Report requires adoption by Council to ensure that the needs of persons with disability, their families and carers are addressed with respect to the facilities, functions and services provided by the Shire.

### **Legal Implications**

Disability Services Act 1993
Disability Services Regulations 2004
The Disability Services Amendment Regulations 2013

### **Policy Implications**

Ensures compliance with the Disability Services Act 1993 reporting requirements.

# Consultation

Internal: Mr Alan George, Chief Executive Officer

Mr Chris Paget, Deputy Chief Executive Officer Mr Craig Elefsen, Manager Infrastructure Services Mrs Cheryl Chappell, Community Service Officer

External: Mr Richard Struik, Department of Communities

### Financial Implications

The 2019-2024 Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) will have financial implication to Council for each year until the expiration of the plan. Costing will vary depending on the projects carried out annually by the Shire. Each financial year the required projects will be included for consideration in the annual budget.

# Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017-2027

Environment Objective Protect and enhance our natural and built environment

Outcome 3.1 A well maintained attractive built environment servicing the

needs of the community

Strategy 3.1.1 Maintain, rationalise, improve or renew buildings and

community infrastructure

# **Voting Requirements**

Simple majority required.

# **RESOLUTION 13583**

Moved: Cr Clarke Seconded: Cr McKenzie

That Council accept the 2021/2022 Disability Access and Inclusion Plan (DAIP) Progress Report as presented.

CARRIED: 7/0

# 15.0 QUESTIONS OF WHICH DUE NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN

Nil

#### **16.0 INFORMATION BULLETIN – MAY 2022**

Applicant:	Internal Report
File No.	Nil
Attachments:	Information Bulletin Cover Page Only
Author:	RRRose
	Mrs Racelis Rose
	Executive Assistant
Disclosure of Interest:	Nil
Date of Report:	20 May 2022
Senior Officer:	A. C.
	Mr Chris Paget Deputy Chief Executive Officer

#### Summary

The purpose of the Information Bulletin is to keep Elected Members informed on matters of interest and importance to Council.

#### **Background**

The Information Bulletin Reports deal with monthly standing items and other information of a strategic nature relevant to Council.

Copies of other relevant Councillor information are distributed via email.

#### Comment

This month's Information Bulletin Report was emailed to Councillors.

The May 2022 Information Bulletin attachments include: Reports:

- Infrastructure Services Report April 2022
- Environmental Health Officer Report January April 2022
- Lake Grace Visitor Centre Report Nil
- Lake Grace Library Report and Statistics May 2022
- Lake King Library Report and Statistics May 2022
- Newdegate Library Report and Statistics May

#### **External Organisations**

- Central Country Zone (CCZ) Agenda and Attachments for 22 April 2022 meeting at the Shire of Wickepin
- Wheatbelt Secondary Freight Network (WSFN) Issue 1 Newsletter April 2022
- WALGA State Council Summary Minutes 4 May 2022 (Regional Meeting south Metropolitan Zone
- WDL / VROC 10 May 2022 at the Shire of Wagin (Elected Members and CEOs)

#### Circulars, Media Releases, Newsletters, Letters:

- SHICC Public Health Bulletin No. 21 26 April 2022
- SHICC Public Health Bulletin No. 22 3 May 2022
- SHICC Public Health Bulletin No. 23 11 May 2022
- SHICC Public Health Bulletin No. 24 11 May 2022

#### **Legal Implications**

Nil

**Policy Implications** 

Nil

Consultation

Nil

#### Financial Implications

Nil

# Strategic Implications

Shire of Lake Grace Strategic Community Plan 2017 – 2027

Leadership Objective		Strong governance and leadership, demonstrating fair and equitable community values
Outcome	4.1	A strategically focused, unified Council functioning efficiently
Strategy	4.1.1	Provide informed leadership on behalf of the community
	4.1.2	Promote and advocate for the community and district
	4.1.3	Provide strategic leadership and governance
Outcome	4.2	An efficient and effective organisation
Strategy	4.2.1	Maintain accountability and financial responsibility through
		effective planning
	4.2.2	Comply with statutory and legislative requirements

# **Voting Requirements**

Simple majority required.

#### **RESOLUTION 13584**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Clarke

That Council accepts the Information Bulletin Report for May 2022.

CARRIED: 7/0

# 17.0 CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS AS PER LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT \$5.23 (2)

#### **RESOLUTION 13585**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Hyde

That Council meet behind closed doors to consider the confidential Item(s) in accordance with Section 3.7 of the Shire of Lake Grace Standing Orders Local Law 2015.

• Item 17.1.1 Chief Executive Officer – Annual Performance Review 2022

Item 17.1.2 Alleged Breach of EPA 1986 Section 51C

These items and any attachments are confidential in accordance with Section 5.23(2)(a) of the Local Government Act 1995.

CARRIED: 7/0

Before the Confidential Item 17.1.1 was tabled, the Chief Executive Officer and Manager Infrastructure Services left the Council Chambers at 3:45pm.

#### **RESOLUTION 13586**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr McKenzie

That Council accept the recommendation contained in Item 17.1.1 – Chief Executive Officer – Annual Performance Review 2022

CARRIED: 7/0

After discussing Confidential Item 17.1.1 the Chief Executive Officer and Manager Infrastructure Services returned to the Council Chambers to join the discussion for Confidential Item 17.1.2 at 4:02pm.

# **RESOLUTION 13587**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Clarke

That Council accept the recommendation contained in Item 17.1.2 – Alleged Breach of Environmental Protection Act 1986 51C.

CARRIED: 7/0

#### **RESOLUTION 13588**

Moved: Cr Chappell Seconded: Cr Clarke

That Council move from behind closed doors to proceed with the meeting.

CARRIED 7/0

# 18.0 DATE OF NEXT MEETING - 22 JUNE 2022

The next Ordinary Council Meeting is scheduled to take place on Wednesday 22 June 2022 commencing at 3:30pm at the Council Chambers, 1 Bishop Street, Lake Grace.

#### 19.0 CLOSURE

There being no further business, the Shire President closed the meeting at 4:05 pm

# 20.0 CERTIFICATION

I, Leonard William Armstrong certify	that the minutes of the Ordinary Council Meeting held on
25 May 2022 as shown were confirm	ned as a true record of the meting>
•	·
Signature	Date

1

Ordinary Council Meeting 22 June 2022

Attachment - Item 13.1 - SoLGTAC Minutes of Meeting - 19 May 2022

Shire of Lake Grace

TOURISM ADVISORY COUNCIL (SoLGTAC)

# **MINUTES**

19 May 2022

Meeting Commencing at 10:00 am

#### **Disclaimer**

No responsibility whatsoever is implied or accepted by the Shire of Lake Grace for any act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council and Committee meetings or during formal and informal conversations with staff. The Shire of Lake Grace disclaims any liability for any loss whatsoever caused arising out of reliance by any person or legal entity on any such act, omission or statement or intimation occurring during Council and Committee meetings or discussions. Any person or legal entity who acts or fails to act in reliance upon any statement does so at that person's and or legal entity's own risk.

In particular and without derogating in any way from the broad disclaimer above, in any discussion regarding any planning application or application for license, any statement or limitation or approval made by a member or officer of the Shire of Lake Grace during the course of any meeting is not intended to be and is not taken as notice of approval from the Shire of Lake Grace. The Shire of Lake Grace warns that anyone who has an application lodged with the Shire of Lake Grace must obtain and only should rely on WRITTEN CONFIRMATION of the outcome of the application and any conditions attaching to the decision made by the Shire of Lake Grace in respect of the application.

# Acknowledgement of Country to be read by the Chairperson

I begin today by acknowledging the Ballardong people, Traditional Custodians of the land on which we meet today, and pay my respects to their Elders past, present and emerging.

I extend that respect to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples here today.



## **CONTENTS**

CONTE	NTS	1
1.0	DECLARATION OF OPENING & ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS	2
2.0	RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE (PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)	2
3.0	PETITIONS / DEPUTATIONS / PRESENTATIONS / SUBMISSIONS	2
4.0	CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS	2
5.0	MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN RECEIVED	2
6.0	NOTICES OF URGENT BUSINESS	3
7.0	VISITOR CENTRE COORDINATOR REPORTS	3
8.0	MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION	4
9.0	OTHER BUSINESS	4
10.0	DATES OF THE NEXT MEETING – 17 AUGUST 2022	4
11.0	CLOSURE	4
12.0	CERTIFICATION	4

## **SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE**

Minutes of the Shire of Lake Grace Tourism Advisory Committee Meeting held at the Lake Grace Visitors Centre, Stubbs Street, Lake Grace on Thursday 19 May 2022.

## 1.0 DECLARATION OF OPENING & ANNOUNCEMENT OF VISITORS

The Chairperson opened the Meeting at 11:10 am.

## 2.0 RECORD OF ATTENDANCE/APOLOGIES/LEAVE OF ABSENCE (PREVIOUSLY APPROVED)

#### Present:

**Committee Members:** 

Ms Cathie Kelly (CK) Chairperson

Cr Debrah Clarke (DC) Shire of Lake Grace - Councillor Representative

Ms Carla Hyde(CH) Community Representative - Varley

Shire of Lake Grace

Mr Chris Paget (CP) Deputy Chief Executive Officer – Shire of Lake Grace

Ms J Morgan (JM) Lake Grace Visitor Centre Coordinator

Apologies:

Ms Suzanne Reeves (SR) Vice Chairperson – Lake Grace

Ms Sheenah Zurnamer(SZ) Community Representative – Lake King Ms Vicki O'Neill-Gray (VOG) Lake Grace Visitor Centre Coordinator

#### 3.0 PETITIONS / DEPUTATIONS / PRESENTATIONS / SUBMISSIONS

#### 4.0 CONFIRMATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS

#### **RESOLUTION 002**

Moved: Cr Deb Clarke Seconded: Ms Jo Morgan

That the Minutes of the Shire of Lake Grace Tourism Advisory Committee held on Monday 21 February 2022 be accepted as a true and accurate record of that meeting.

CARRIED: 5/0

## 5.0 MOTIONS OF WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN RECEIVED

Nil

#### 6.0 NOTICES OF URGENT BUSINESS

Nil

## 7.0 VISITOR CENTRE COORDINATOR REPORTS

#### **VC Coordinator Report**

- Visitor Centre has now removed all COVID mask wearing signs; numbers of travellers really starting to pick up.
- Discuss past events (since last meeting) and upcoming planned events
- Walk trail at old Speedway brochures complete; signs are in stock and the entrance to the trail from the road will soon be cleared.
- "Across the Lake" book reprint scanning of the old document has now been completed by the Lake grace CRC. Next steps are the proof reading & compilation of photos.
- Changes to LG Pub and Salt Bush Inn both venues now under new management.
- Free Camping in Lake Grace? The CMCA made a presentation to the Shire Council at the April meeting and an opportunity exists for them to support the development of a free camp area in Lake Grace; possibly on land to the west of town. They have left us with brochures and information pack about it all.
- Ideas for 2022-23 annual budget requests for the Lake Grace Visitor Centre and tourism promotion for the area:
  - More signage of local interest spots, geographical features etc.
  - Renewal of existing signs that may have deteriorated or gone missing (including the 'wave' signs?); a signage audit can be conducted.
  - Updates and reprints of existing brochures and/or maps will need to check who holds copyright and IP on some publications.
  - Installation of proper baby change tables and hooks in the public toilets.
- Volunteers for the Visitor Centre and AIM tours on weekends? The Shire is aware
  of the increasing demand for the Centre to open on weekends, will be looking at a
  casual role but will need to determine exact hours it will operate. Critical that the
  person has adequate local knowledge of the area but at present everyone has a
  staff shortage all around.

#### **AIM Hospital Museum Report**

 Averaging 3-4 tours a week at present; expect this to pick up as we are receiving enquiries from organised tour companies for future months.

#### **Roe Tourism Association**

• The next meeting of the RTA will be held on Monday 23<sup>rd</sup> May 2022 in Narembeen. Minutes of this will be circulated to the committee members when they are sent through from the Roe Tourism Executive Officer.

#### Australia's Golden Outback

 Visitor Centre Coordinators will catch up with AGO crew at WA Tourism Conference which will be commencing in Perth on Monday 20<sup>th</sup> June through to Wednesday 23<sup>rd</sup>.

#### 8.0 MATTERS FOR CONSIDERATION

Nil

#### 9.0 OTHER BUSINESS

- The former Visitor Centre Committee final step to full dissolution will be to close the old bank account and arrange a payment Annie Argent of \$500 for completing all financial statements and assistance with the audit. DCEO will liaise with the Manager Corporate Services to have this done.
- Wildflower signage throughout Shire can we look at promoting this similar to how Moora and the Mid-West region do it, as our flower season is just as spectacular. Perhaps develop a wildflower symbol/logo design e.g. verticordia which is native and unique to our area.
- Sculpture Trail from Dumbleyung to Newdegate preliminary discussions have occurred through the artists group and others.
- Varley community are looking for grant opportunities for developing and promoting their local history and possibly also a mural somewhere in the town.
- Newdegate Centenary celebration to be held in late September; the Committee there have a wonderful variety of projects underway already and a very well-planned weekend of events. Expect there to be many locals and visitors attending.
- It would be great to have discussions with the Lake Grace Regional Artspace about painting the western wall of the building either with a mural or a neutral colour as it currently looks a mess and detracts from the immediate neat surroundings.

## 10.0 DATES OF THE NEXT MEETING – 17 AUGUST 2022

The next meeting of the Shire of Lake Grace Tourism Advisory Committee will be on Wednesday 17 August 2022 at 10:00am at the Lake Grace Visitor Centre.

#### 11.0 CLOSURE

There being no further business, the Chairperson closed the meeting at 12:55pm.

## 12.0 CERTIFICATION

I, Catherine Kelly certify that the Minutes of Meetin confirmed as a true record of that meeting.	ng held on 19 May 2022 as shown were
Signature	Date

#### **Racelis Rose**

From: Stephanie Clarke-Lloyd <stephanie.l.clarke@bigpond.com>

**Sent:** Friday, 3 June 2022 1:24 PM

**To:** Alan George

**Subject:** Re: Newdegate Centenary

Hi Alan,

Yes, no trouble at all. There are still quite a few bits and pieces pending and I think they will be coming in right to the end, specifically with the Sponsorship as we didn't want the local business to have to contribute separately. We feel that the community is contributing more than enough through both the Newdegate Community Cropping Group and the Shire of Lake Grace contributions. So, have gone out of town as much as possible.

So, below is what we are looking like for now and these are only the event contributions – not the project contributions which are separate – and have separate funding.

**Event Funding Only Confirmed:** 

Newdegate Community Crop - \$50,000 Kulin Community Bank - \$15,000 Regional Arts WA - \$10,000 Shire of Lake Grace - \$32, 343

Still pending – (all sponsors at \$10 - \$15k – and have all been approached)

- Bungy
- Afgri
- CSPB
- Whitfert
- Dyson Jones
- Lotterywest still negotiating how we do this with Natalie but at the moment it is looking like if it goes ahead
  it will be for a specific Hainsworth related project like the digital archive (or something like that) if that makes
  sense so won't be included in the event funds.

If you need more, or have more questions please let me know. I have a list of potential sponsors but we are working through in a bit of an order, so have just included the ones on the table at the moment, if that is ok.

Thanks Alan. Have a good weekend! Steph.

From: Alan George <ceo@lakegrace.wa.gov.au>

Date: Friday, 3 June 2022 at 9:44 am

To: "stephanie.l.clarke@bigpond.com" < stephanie.l.clarke@bigpond.com>

**Subject:** Newdegate Centenary

Hi Steph

It is certainly a comprehensive report you have given.

As support for your request would it be possible to give me what your contributions are to the event including grants please. It need not be to the cent.

#### **Thanks**

Kind Regards,

## **Alan George**

**Chief Executive Officer** 



## Shire of Lake Grace

Address: 1 Bishop Street, Lake Grace WA 6353 Postal Address: PO Box 50, Lake Grace WA 6353

• Phone: (08) 9890 2500 • Fax: (08) 9890 2599

Website: www.lakegrace.wa.gov.au

🚮 Facebook: www.facebook.com/ShireofLakeGrace

Disclaimer by the Shire of Lake Grace

This email and any attachments are confidential and may contain legally privileged and/or copyright material. You should not read, copy, use or disclose any of the information contain If you have received it in error please contact us at once by return email and then delete both emails. There is no warranty that this email is error or virus free

# ORDINARY COUNCIL MEETING Attachment - Item 14.5.1 - Account Listings 20220531 22 JUNE 2022

MUNICIP. Chq/EFT	AL FUND Date	Description	Α	mount	An	nount
EFT23588	04/05/2022	Anna Scheepers			-\$	200.00
		Varley Hall Cleaning 11-22 April 2022	\$	200.00	•	
EFT23589		Australia Post			-\$	150.28
FFT00500		Postage April 2022	\$	150.28	•	10.50
EFT23590		BOC Gases Australia Limited Container Service April 2022	\$	12.53	-\$	12.53
EFT23591		Best Office Systems	Φ	12.33	-\$	512.92
21 120001		Photocopier Charges April 2022	\$	512.92	Ψ	012.02
EFT23592	04/05/2022	Building and Energy Division Department of Mines, Industry Regulation and Safety			-\$	498.60
FFT00500		BSL LG212205 - Modular WA, 2 Quondong Court	\$	498.60		
EFT23593		CCL Hardware	Ф	924.35	-\$	975.85
		Hardware Supplies April 2022 Hardware Supplies April 2022	\$ \$	51.50		
EFT23594		CHILD SUPPORT AGENCY	Ψ	01.00	-\$	158.49
		Payroll deductions	\$	158.49	•	100110
EFT23595		Chris Burnell			-\$	6,500.00
		Ngt Anzac Wall Stoneworks	\$	6,500.00		
EFT23596		Cloud Collections Pty Ltd			-\$	2,101.00
FFT00F07		Rates Debt Collection Services - April 2022	\$	2,101.00	•	500.00
EFT23597		Cr Anton Joseph Kuchling	<b>c</b>	F00 00	-\$	500.00
EFT23598		Councillor Meeting Fees & IT Allowance April 2022 Cr Benjamin John Hyde	\$	500.00	-\$	500.00
LI 120000		Councillor Meeting Fees & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	500.00	-ψ	300.00
EFT23599		Cr Debrah Susan Clarke	_	000.00	-\$	500.00
		Councillor Meeting Fees & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	500.00	•	
EFT23600		Cr Jeffrey Vincent McKenzie			-\$	500.00
		Councillor Meeting Fees & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	500.00		
EFT23601		Cr Leonard William Armstrong Councillor Meeting Fees, Presidential & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	2,505.25	-\$	2,505.25
EFT23602	04/05/2022	Cr Rosalind Alice Lloyd			-\$	583.08
		Councillor Meeting Fees, Travel & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	583.08		
EFT23603		Cr Ross Chappell			-\$	918.00
EFT23604		Councillor Meeting Fees, Deputy President & IT Allowance April 2022 Cr Shane David Carruthers	\$	918.00	¢	500.00
EF123004		Councillor Meeting Fees & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	500.00	-\$	500.00
EFT23605		Cr Stephen Gordon Hunt	Ψ	300.00	-\$	1,002.31
		Councillor Meeting Fees, Travel & IT Allowance April 2022	\$	1,002.31	•	1,002.01
EFT23606	04/05/2022	Cutting Edges Equipment Parts Pty Ltd			-\$	2,690.16
		Grader Blades	\$	2,690.16		
EFT23607	04/05/2022	Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development			-\$	1,445.02
		Ngt Research Facility Water Usage	\$	1,445.02		
EFT23608		GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd	_	50 540 50	-\$	56,512.50
EFT23609		Resheeting Purnta Rd - Final 25% Hardy Metals Pty Ltd	\$	56,512.50	¢	192.01
EF123009		Rates refund for assessment A6818 LOT E70/05523	\$	182.01	-\$	182.01
	20/0-1/2022	EXPLORATION LICENCE LAKE GRACE WA 6353	Ψ	102.01		
EFT23610	04/05/2022	Integrated ICT			-\$	6,495.61
	30/04/2022	IT Support Apri 2022	\$	2,046.55		
		UPS Towers	\$	4,449.06		
EFT23611		Ipec Pty Ltd	Φ.	05.07	-\$	25.87
EET22642		Freight 01 Mar 2022	\$	25.87	¢	4 704 04
EFT23612		LOGO Appointments Contract Grader Operator week ending 23 Apr 2022	\$	1,724.24	-\$	1,724.24
EFT23613		Lake Grace Community Resource Centre	Ψ	· , · ∠ · · . ∠ · ·	-\$	4,916.50
		Canon Wide Format Printer	\$	1,000.00	_	,
	30/04/2022	Advertising Building Maintenance Officer & Showcase in Pixels	\$	66.50		
		Editing Scanning Across the Lake	\$	3,850.00		
EFT23614		Lake Grace Playgroup			-\$	100.00
EET02645		Number Plate Donation 0004LG	\$	100.00	•	E 40 47
EFT23615	04/05/2022	Lake Grace Plaza			-\$	542.47

	01/04/2022 Bus Trip Supplies	\$	59.97		
	13/04/2022 Training Supplies	\$	45.00		
	28/04/2022 Cleaning Supplies	\$	386.00		
EET00040	30/04/2022 Newspapers April 2022	\$	51.50	•	440.00
EFT23616	04/05/2022 Lake Grace Transport 26/04/2022 Freight 23 Mar 2022	\$	112.60	-\$	112.60
EFT23617	04/05/2022 Landgate	φ	112.00	-\$	41.30
LI 123017	28/04/2022 Mining Tenements Chargable Schedule M2022/3	\$	41.30	-φ	41.50
EFT23618	04/05/2022 Lillys Garden	Ψ	11.00	-\$	136.00
	10/04/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock	\$	136.00	•	100.00
EFT23619	04/05/2022 Marketforce Productions			-\$	1,529.98
	01/01/2022 Early Settlement Discount	-\$	41.00		•
	27/04/2022 Advertising Annual Electors Meeting	\$	631.07		
	27/04/2022 Advertising Building Maintenance Officer	\$	939.91		
EFT23620	04/05/2022 McKenzie Concrete Co			-\$	21,309.20
	02/05/2022 Footpath on Wattle Drive	\$	8,824.20		
	03/05/2022 Ngt Toilet Block Cement	\$	1,633.50		
	03/05/2022 Footpath Repairs Absolon & Bishop St	\$	9,889.00		
	03/05/2022 Kerbing on Gumtree Drive	\$	962.50		
EFT23621	04/05/2022 Mrs G's Catering			-\$	1,167.50
	30/04/2022 Catering for Training	\$	810.00		
	30/04/2022 Catering for Council Meeting	\$	357.50		
EFT23622	04/05/2022 Neu-Tech Auto Electrics			-\$	198.10
EET2222	24/03/2022 Battery for LG1767 Ranger	\$	198.10		
EFT23623	04/05/2022 Newdegate Grocer And Cafe	•	07.00	-\$	672.70
	19/04/2022 Ngt Rec Centre Cleaning Supplies	\$	27.30		
EET02624	27/04/2022 Cleaning Supplies	\$	645.40	<b>.</b>	00.67
EFT23624	04/05/2022 Newdegate Primary School	Φ	90.67	-\$	89.67
FFT0060F	28/04/2022 Electricity Usage 15 Mar - 19 Apr 2022	\$	89.67	¢	049.54
EFT23625	04/05/2022 Outback TV 26/04/2022 Ngt Medical Centre Front Door Repairs	¢	324.50	-\$	918.51
	26/04/2022 54A Bennett St Repairs to RCD & GPO	\$ \$	226.11		
	26/04/2022 LG Football Dam Pump Repairs	\$	367.90		
EFT23626	04/05/2022 Ross Ramm	Ψ	307.90	-\$	20.00
LI 123020	31/03/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock	\$	20.00	-ψ	20.00
EFT23627	04/05/2022 S & L Trevenen	Ψ	20.00	-\$	67,226.50
21 120021	27/04/2022 Maintenance Grading Lake King - Varley	\$	30,712.00	Ψ	01,220.00
	03/05/2022 Maintenance Grading Ngt 1 March - 30 April 2022	\$	36,514.50		
EFT23628	04/05/2022 SOUTHSIDE MITSUBISHI	Ť	00,0100	-\$	52,208.21
	28/04/2022 Dr Vehicle Pajero Sport	\$	52,208.21	•	<b>-,</b>
EFT23629	04/05/2022 Telstra Corporation Limited		- ,	-\$	225.00
	20/04/2022 BFB Satellite Phones	\$	225.00		
EFT23630	04/05/2022 Varley Ag Solutions			-\$	327.80
	26/04/2022 Varley Garden Supplies April 2022	\$	307.45		
	26/04/2022 Fuel for Mower	\$	20.35		
EFT23631	04/05/2022 WA Contract Ranger Services			-\$	654.50
	23/04/2022 Contract Ranger Services 23/03 & 21/04	\$	654.50		
EFT23632	04/05/2022 WESTRAC PTY LTD			-\$	1,442.79
	28/04/2022 Cat Grader Service	\$	1,442.79		
EFT23633	04/05/2022 Wazzas Complete Sheep Management			-\$	7,353.50
	29/04/2022 Ngt Town Maint 1 - 29 April 2022	\$	7,353.50		
EFT23634	05/05/2022 McLeods			-\$	201,090.00
	06/05/2022 Purchase Newdegate Depot - 1 Rasmusen Road, Newdegate	\$	201,090.00		
EET2222	10/07/2000				
EFT23635	10/05/2022 a_space Australia Pty Ltd	•	00 000 00	-\$	29,200.00
EET00000	01/04/2022 Outdoor Exercise Equipment - Shire Contribution	\$	29,200.00	•	404 740 00
EFT23636	13/05/2022 Albany City Motors	Φ	101 712 00	-\$	101,713.90
EFT23637	12/05/2022 Isuzu NQT 87-190 AMT Crew Cab 19/05/2022 Alfresco Kitchens Pty Ltd	Ф	101,713.90	¢	2 494 05
EF123037		¢	2 494 05	-\$	2,484.95
EFT23638	10/05/2022 BBQ for Ngt Country Club - Deposit 19/05/2022 Allmark & Associates Py Ltd	\$	2,484.95	-\$	3,932.50
LI 123030	18/05/2022 Plaques for Ngt Memorial	\$	3,932.50	-φ	3,332.30
EFT23639	19/05/2022 Anna Scheepers	φ	0,302.00	-\$	200.00
L1 120003	08/05/2022 Varley Hall Cleaning 26/04/2022 - 06/05/2022	\$	200.00	Ψ	200.00
EFT23640	19/05/2022 Best Office Systems	Ψ	200.00	-\$	33.00
	04/05/2022 Paper Roll for Plotter	\$	33.00	Ψ	00.00
EFT23641	19/05/2022 CHILD SUPPORT AGENCY	Ψ	55.00	-\$	158.49
				¥	

18/05/2022 Ngt Hall Refurbishment - Progress Payment       \$ 88,000.00         EFT23643 19/05/2022 Economic Regulation Authority       -\$ 1,958.00         EFT23644 19/05/2022 Fiona Palmer       -\$ 30.00         09/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock       \$ 30.00         EFT23645 19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,7         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646 19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647 19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50	00.00 958.00
EFT23643       19/05/2022 Economic Regulation Authority       -\$ 1,958.00         EFT23644       19/05/2022 Fiona Palmer       -\$ 30.00         EFT23645       19/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock       \$ 30.00         EFT23645       19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,7         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       \$ 460.50	
05/05/2022 Sewerage Audit       \$ 1,958.00         EFT23644       19/05/2022 Fiona Palmer       -\$ 30.00         09/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock       \$ 30.00         EFT23645       19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,7         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       \$ 460.50	
EFT23644       19/05/2022 Fiona Palmer       -\$         09/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock       \$ 30.00         EFT23645       19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,'         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	
09/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock       \$ 30.00         EFT23645       19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,1         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	
EFT23645       19/05/2022 GS Hobbs Contracting Pty Ltd       -\$ 4,1         12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	30.00
12/05/2022 New Landfill Trench at Lake King Tip       \$ 4,152.50         EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	152 50
EFT23646       19/05/2022 Great Southern Fuel Supplies       -\$ 23,1         30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022       \$ 3,272.27         30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022       \$ 621.35         06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	152.50
30/04/2022 Fuel Card Purchases April 2022 \$ 3,272.27 \$ 30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022 \$ 621.35 \$ 621.35 \$ 621.35 \$ 66/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L \$ 19,292.90 \$ EFT23647 19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services \$ 460.50 \$ EFT23648 19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd \$ -\$ 28,1	86.52
30/04/2022 LLAG Fuel April 2022 \$ 621.35   19,292.90    EFT23647 19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services	00.02
06/05/2022 Diesel for Depot 10,000L       \$ 19,292.90         EFT23647       19/05/2022 Hudson Sewage Services       -\$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 Lake King Toilet Biomax: 23 February 2022 Service       \$ 460.50         EFT23648       19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd       -\$ 28,1	
04/05/2022 Lake King Toilet Biomax: 23 February 2022 Service \$ 460.50 EFT23648 19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd -\$ 28,1	
EFT23648 19/05/2022 IT Vision Pty Ltd -\$ 28,1	160.50
30/04/2022 Rates Services - April 2022 \$ 4.262.50	54.50
30/04/2022 Altus Payroll Implementation - 20% \$ 7,964.00 30/04/2022 Altus Payroll Implementation - 40% \$ 15,928.00	
	16.52
10/05/2022 Upgrade Shire Standpipes with 4G Routers & PLCs \$ 25,816.52	10.52
	141.89
30/04/2022 Office 365 Exclaimer April 2022 \$ 78.43	
30/04/2022 Office 365 Licenses April 2022 \$ 363.46	
EFT23651 19/05/2022 Ipec Pty Ltd -\$	56.23
08/05/2022 Freight 22 Mar 22 \$ 56.23	
	740.00
16/05/2022 BBQ/Fire Pit for Jam Patch \$ 3,740.00	700 75
	529.75
	765.60
09/05/2022 Repairs to Hydraulic Cylinder on LG3108 Tractor \$ 765.60	03.00
	554.40
08/06/2021 Traffic Cones for LLAG \$ 554.40	
EFT23656 19/05/2022 Lake Grace Sportsman's Club Inc -\$	64.00
10/05/2022 Refreshments for Councillor Fridge \$ 64.00	
· ·	162.00
04/05/2022 LG Visitor Centre Stock \$ 162.00	
	088.06
04/04/2022 LG049 Ranger Ute - 15,000km Service \$ 475.99 20/04/2022 LG139 Ford Everest 30,000km Service \$ 612.07	
	60.00
13/05/2022 Ngt Footpaths Deposit \$ 11,660.00	00.00
	274.70
16/12/2021 Legal Work for Weather Station Lease \$ 274.70	
	126.00
11/02/2022 BFB Supplies for Fires \$ 126.00	
EFT23662 19/05/2022 Newdegate Primary School -\$	92.88
18/05/2022 Ngt Library/CRC Electricity \$ 92.88	200 40
	332.43
01/04/2022 Fuel for Mower & Roller \$ 154.85 04/04/2022 Mice Bait for Ngt Indoor Rec \$ 231.00	
07/04/2022 Mice Bat for Ngt Indoor Rec \$ 107.80	
09/04/2022 Cement for Ngt Memorial \$ 46.75	
20/04/2022 Lubricant for Ngt Playground \$ 26.40	
21/04/2022 Fuel for Mower & Roller \$ 137.86	
17/05/2022 Diesel for Fuel Truck in Ngt \$ 6,127.77	
	078.61
16/05/2022 Repairs to Lake King Toilet Block \$ 1,078.61	-04 -
	721.00
09/05/2022 BBQ for Jam Patch \$ 6,721.00 EFT23666 19/05/2022 Pauley & Co -\$ 1,	172 50
EFT23666 19/05/2022 Pauley & Co -\$ 1,7	172.59
·	368.51
10/05/2022 Various Chains, Slings & Harness \$ 2,868.51	
	018.00
09/05/2022 New Tyres for CEO Vehile LG001 \$ 2,018.00	

EET00000	10/07/0000 D			_	
EFT23669	19/05/2022 Prompt Safety Solutions			-\$	5,500.00
	17/05/2022 Generic Traffic Management Plans	\$	2,750.00		
	17/05/2022 Traffic Management Plan for Old Ravensthorpe Rd	\$	2,750.00		
EFT23670	19/05/2022 SOUTHERN TOOL AND FASTENER CO			-\$	134.00
	05/05/2022 Carburettor	\$	134.00		
EFT23671	19/05/2022 Safe Roads WA	·		-\$	6,065.40
	02/05/2022 Road Patching Works	\$	6,065.40	Ψ	0,000110
EFT23672	19/05/2022 Synergy Electricity Generation and Retail Corp	Ψ	0,000.40	-\$	17,673.31
LI 123012	12/05/2022 127078400 Medical Centre Lot 116 Memorial Dr LG	¢	1 060 E4	-φ	17,073.31
		\$	1,068.54		
	129110870 Kindergarten Lot 233 Absolon St LG	\$	185.56		
	134311810 Railway Station Lot 362 Stubbs St LG	\$	690.00		
	138007430 Day Care Centre 2 Griffiths St LG	\$	142.78		
	387878630 Staff Housing 6 Banksia PI, LG	\$	67.94		
	330919390 Staff Housing U2 54B Bennett St LG	\$	418.16		
	355686650 Staff Housing 1 Quondong Crt LG	\$	160.09		
	359079340 Staff Housing 33B Absolon Street LG	\$	71.52		
	156576110 NGT Oval Lot 149 Waddell St NGT	\$	1,168.01		
	250352580 RSL Hall - 24 Stubbs St LG	\$	125.69		
	317611200 Staff Housing 36 Bennett St LG	\$	115.97		
	697266750 Lakes Village Hall 2 Bennett St LG	\$	224.41		
	732925950 NGT TV Transmitter Lot149 Waddell St NGT	\$	318.63		
	995371470 Lake Grace Oval Lot 1 South Rd LG	\$	353.97		
	935556670 Information Bay Stubbs St LG	\$	120.13		
	129094750 Vrl Rec Grnd/Oval LOC 1166 UA Carstairs Rd	\$	81.46		
	201879730 Public Toilets Lot 2699 Maley St NGT	\$	218.86		
	912435390 Lake Grace Hall McMahon St LG	\$	290.87		
	237378050 Hainsworth Building Lot 60 Collier St NGT	\$	109.02		
	797296030 NGT Fire Station Lot 196 May St NGT	\$	220.07		
	343939530 LG Oval retic Mason St LG	\$	120.13		
	837171710 Ping Sports Pav-n Loc 2266 Pingaring-Vrl Rd	\$	185.97		
	595320510 LG Pumping Station Lot 275 Mason St LG	\$	351.34		
	450222670 Old Doctor's Surgery 31 Bennett St LG	\$	183.68		
	327733870 LG Oval-Basketball Court Lot 75 Bishop St	\$	243.10		
	632457350 LG TV Tower Lot 359 Dewar St LG	\$	252.45		
	491541070 LG sewerage Stubbs St LG	\$	139.70		
	901681390 Public Toilets Lot 59 Seward Ave Vrl	\$	259.86		
	946946910 LG Airstrip LOC 19914 Dumbleyung-LG Rd	\$	131.64		
	968110430 Town Clock Stubbs St LG	\$	127.67		
	893222990 LG Swimming Pool Lot 75 Stubbs St LG	\$	1,538.81		
	791802670 Vrly Pavilion Loc 1166 Carstairs Rd Vrl	-\$	1,754.55		
	365354210 Staff Housing Lot 2016 Blackbutt Way LG	\$	310.24		
	608222350 Station Masters House Visitor Cntr-Stubbs St	\$	227.41		
	794657310 NGT Oval Lot 149P Waddell St NGT	\$	286.20		
	693350310 Lakes Village Grnds Retic U2 Bennett St LG	\$	193.73		
	511332320 Shire Office Lot 75 Stubbs St LG	\$	651.34		
	336652990 Street Lighting LG 67.2%	\$	3,009.12		
		φ Φ			
	336652990 Street Lighting NGT 23.1%	\$	1,034.39		
	336652990 Street Lighting LK 5.9%	\$	264.19		
	336652990 Street Lighting Vrl 3.8%	\$	170.16		
	839490030 Shire Depot Lot 252 Absolon St LG	\$	262.09		
	463275870 LG Sports Pavilion Bishop St LG	\$	1,950.95		
	720436540 Park Lot 9 Maley St, NGT	\$	125.39		
	587508750 LG Oval - Loc 12722 Elliott Rd, South LG	\$	285.27		
	783748990 LG Oval Lot 75 Bishop St LG	\$	358.18		
	163376940 Medical Centre UA Lot 33 Maley St NGT	\$	238.30		
		\$			
	253091930 NGT Public Hall Lot 33 Maley St NGT	φ Φ	142.20		
	264043790 Varley Hall Lot 8 Pitt St	\$	157.34		
FFT006=1	360158570 Staff Housing 33A Absolon Street LG	\$	75.33		
EFT23673	19/05/2022 TK & KR King			-\$	8,129.55
	02/05/2022 Gravel for Mallee Hill Rd	\$	8,129.55		
EFT23674	19/05/2022 Telstra Corporation Limited			-\$	5,709.67
	27/04/2022 LLAG Broadband	\$	86.00		
	04/05/2022 Mobile Phone Charges 0407034641-Sewerage-Fail Safe	\$	0.11		
	0407148677 - DFES I-Pad	\$	500.00		
	0407384735-Sewerage-Fail Safe	\$	0.28		
	0408411920-Sewerage-Fail Safe	\$	0.26		
	0400411920-Sewerage-Pail Safe	\$ \$			
	0417021700-CEO IVIUDIIE	Ф	30.52		

		0418326588-LG Pool Manager 0427651127 Supervisor Mobile 0428651109-Leading Hand Mobile 0428711190-Newdegate Fire Truck 0429571975-Sewerage 0429651112-Parks & Gardens Mobile 0436668242-CESM Mobile 0448089092-MIS Mobile 0445808205-Councillors WI-FI 0476806205-Councillors WI-FI 0476806205-Councillors Air Card 0458004636 - Trail Camera 0487223282 - LG Sports Pav Solar backup battery storage 0487223282 - LG Sports Pav Solar backup battery storage 0487234395 - LG Medical Centre Solar backup battery storage 0487234305 - OSH Admin iPad Data 0457564350 - OSH Admin iPad Data SMS Service to 9 May 2022 Landline Charges Depot - 9865 1067 Lake Grace Pool - 9865 1144 Lake Grace Library - 9865 1185 Lake Grace Medical Centre - 9865 1208 Lake Grace Medical Centre Fax - 9865 1362 Lake Grace Medical Centre - 9865 1388 Depot - 9865 1493 AIM - 9865 1646 Lake Grace Airstrip - 9865 1656 338 Memorial Drive - 9865 1978 Depot - 9865 1986 Lake Grace Visitor Centre - 9871 1105 Newdegate Medical Centre - 9871 1105 Newdegate Medical Centre - 9871 1105 Newdegate Medical Centre - 9871 11528 Lake King Library - 9874 4147 Lake King Fire Station - 9874 4196 Lake King Library - 9874 4196 Lake King Library Internet - 9874 4234 Fire Ban Hotline - 9487 7191 Administration Office - 9880 2500 Lake Grace Medical Centre Internet - N9502816R Newdegate Medical Centre Internet - N9502816R Newdegate Fire Station - 9781 1228 Group Plan Discount Rounding	$\phi$	0.06 535.48 0.06 0.17 44.75 0.11 134.08 111.78 40.00 44.99 299.22 500.00 500.00 15.81 34.99 34.99 1,319.10 34.95 34.95 39.06 102.39 43.73 43.53 34.95 35.10 34.95		
EFT23675		The Trustee for Coloured Creations Family Trust	-⊅		-\$	2,530.00
EFT23676	19/05/2022	Ngt Medical Centre Repairs to Fascia Boards WA Contract Ranger Services Ranger Services 5/5, 12/5 & 13/5/22	\$	2,530.00 748.00	-\$	748.00
EFT23677	19/05/2022 07/05/2022	Warren Blackwood Waste Recycling Pickups April 2022 Refuse Pickups April 2022	\$	4,364.80 3,859.20	-\$	8,224.00
EFT23678	19/05/2022	Wazzas Complete Sheep Management	į		-\$	3,465.00
EFT23679	20/05/2022	Ngt Town Gardening & Maintenance 2-13 May 2022 Pauley & Co	\$	3,465.00	-\$	112,654.33
EFT23680		Hockey Lights at LG Oval - Final 30% Trevenen Building & Glass Pty Ltd	\$	112,654.33	-\$	48,722.50
		Ngt Country Club Refurbishment - April TOTAL EFT	\$	48,722.50	-\$ 1	,021,260.34
36998		Water Corporation Water Usgae Park at 1 Blackbutt Drive	Ф	8.19	-\$	558.19
		Lake Biddy Dam Rental Charges	\$ \$	550.00		
		TOTAL CHEQUES			-\$	558.19
DD10009.1	02/05/2022	Westnet Pty Ltd			-\$	632.85
22.0000.1	32,00,202E				Ψ	002.00

	02/05/2022 Inte	ernet Charges	\$	632.85		
DD10009.2	02/05/2022 Exe				-\$	1,375.00
		rporate Internet - Monthly Charge On Plan TMLL100 R2	\$	1,375.00		
DD10009.3		A Treasury Corporation			-\$	13,079.58
	02/05/2022 Loa	an 204 - CEO Residence	\$	13,079.58		
DD10015.1		e SD & LM Carruthers Superannuation Fund	Φ	040.00	-\$	240.00
DD10015.2		perannuation contributions stralian Super Administration	\$	240.00	-\$	1,405.55
DD 100 10.2	11/05/2022 Pay		\$	70.31	Ψ	1,400.00
	11/05/2022 Pay	yroll deductions	\$	228.34		
DD40045.0		perannuation contributions	\$	1,106.90	•	0.007.04
DD10015.3	11/05/2022 Awa 11/05/2022 Pay		\$	389.59	-\$	6,687.94
	11/05/2022 Pay		\$	53.96		
	11/05/2022 Pay	yroll deductions	\$	442.49		
		perannuation contributions	\$	5,801.90	•	
DD10015.4	11/05/2022 RES 11/05/2022 Pay	ST Superannuation	Ф	46.68	-\$	252.65
		perannuation contributions	\$ \$	205.97		
DD10015.5		LONIAL FIRST STATE FIRST CHOICE PERSONAL	Ť	200.01	-\$	577.38
		PER				
	11/05/2022 Pay		\$	230.95		
DD10015.6		perannuation contributions rth Personal Superannuation	\$	346.43	-\$	141.04
DD 100 10.0	11/05/2022 Pay		\$	35.26	Ψ	141.04
	11/05/2022 Sup	perannuation contributions	\$	105.78		
DD10015.7	11/05/2022 Prim		Φ.	447.04	-\$	447.94
DD10015.8	11/05/2022 Sup 11/05/2022 Hos	perannuation contributions	\$	447.94	-\$	416.58
DD 10015.0		perannuation contributions	\$	416.58	-ψ	410.50
DD10015.9	11/05/2022 Pan	norama Super			-\$	70.52
DD40000.4		perannuation contributions	\$	70.52	•	4 000 00
DD10028.1		re of Lake Grace Credit Card 04/22 Zoom Subscription from Apr 19, 2022-May 18, 2022	\$	23.09	-\$	4,033.92
		Council Zoom Video ZOOM Receipt #INV144011236	Ψ	20.00		
		04/22 Foreign transaction fee ZOOM Receipt #N/A	\$	0.68		
		04/22 Meals during the Lake King Progress Association	\$	102.00		
		eting held on Wednesday 6 April 2021 LAKE KING VERN/MOT Receipt #12077				
		04/22 Meals during the Annual General Meeting of Electors -	\$	225.50		
		April 2022 LAKE KING TAVERN/MOT Receipt #12147				
		04/22 Licence and motor injury insurance policy Insurance CK23 SHIRE OF LAKE GRACE Receipt #12655444	\$	387.09		
		04/22 Licence and motor injury insurance policy PTCK23	\$	40.81		
	SHI	IRE OF LAKE GRACE Receipt #12655444 04/22 Fuel for LG Community bus PCB02 NEWDEGATE	\$	171.75		
	STC	OCK & TR Receipt #100869 04/22 Meals on Road inspection bus trip 4 & 5 April 2022	\$	95.00		
	LAK	KE GRACE ROADHOUSE Receipt #313138-1 04/22 Meals on Road inspection bus trip 4 & 5 April 2022	\$	90.00		
	LAK	KE GRACE ROADHOUSE Receipt #313381-1				
		04/22 IPAD PRO 11 WF CL 128 SLV-AUS for OHS APPLE	\$	1,449.00		
	15/0	LINE AU Receipt #AH38728797 04/22 IPAD PRO 11 WF CL 128 GRY-AUS for OHS APPLE	\$	1,449.00		
DD10028.2		LINE AU Receipt #AH38728797 A Treasury Corporation			-\$	39,482.34
	30/05/2022 Loa	an 196 - Transport - Roads Plant		26,965.88	•	,
DD40045.4		an 198 - Lake Grace Sports Pavilion (SARS)	\$	12,516.46	•	4 405 55
DD10045.1		stralian Super Administration perannuation contributions	\$	1,405.55	-\$	1,405.55
DD10045.2	26/05/2022 Awa		Ψ	., 100.00	-\$	6,923.77
	25/05/2022 Sup	perannuation contributions	\$	6,923.77		·
DD10045.3	26/05/2022 Prim	me Super			-\$	500.46

	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 500.46		
DD10045.4	26/05/2022	The SD & LM Carruthers Superannuation Fund		-\$	240.00
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 240.00		
DD10045.5	26/05/2022	Hostplus		-\$	387.36
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 387.36		
DD10045.6	26/05/2022	North Personal Superannuation		-\$	141.03
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 141.03		
DD10045.7	26/05/2022	Panorama Super		-\$	105.77
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 105.77		
DD10045.8	26/05/2022	REST Superannuation		-\$	58.76
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 58.76		
DD10045.9	26/05/2022	COLONIAL FIRST STATE FIRST CHOICE PERSONAL SUPER		-\$	577.38
	25/05/2022	Superannuation contributions	\$ 577.38		
		TOTAL DIRECT DEBITS		-\$	79,183.37
		TOTAL MUNICIPAL FUND		-\$ 1	,101,001.90